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CITY OF SANTA BARBARA


COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT

AGENDA DATE:

March 27, 2007
TO:



Mayor and Councilmembers
FROM:


Engineering Division, Public Works Department
SUBJECT:

Purchase Of 303 West Ortega Street For The Ortega Street Bridge Replacement Project At Mission Creek
RECOMMENDATION:

That Council Adopt, by reading of title only, a Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Public Works Director, Subject to Review and Approval by the City Attorney, to Approve an Agreement of Sale with Ann Ehrenclou, to Initiate the Purchase by the City of Santa Barbara of Certain Real Property at 303 West Ortega Street, as Approved by the State of California, Department of Transportation, and as Approved by the United States Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration, as a Hardship Purchase in Advance of the Ortega Street Bridge Replacement Project at Mission Creek, in the Appraised Fair Market Value Amount of $620,000, Plus Associated Costs, and to Execute Documents as May be Needed to Enable such Purchase, Including, but not Limited to Sale Escrow Instructions, and Accepting the Real Property Located at 303 West Ortega Street.
DISCUSSION:
BACKGROUND

The attached aerial photo (Attachment 1) shows the location of the existing bridge at Ortega Street crossing over Mission Creek, and the adjacent property at 303 West Ortega Street (APN 037‑113‑008), owned by Ms. Ann Ehrenclou. 

The Ortega Street Bridge Replacement Project at Mission Creek (Project) is currently in the design phase, which includes environmental review.  The Project is scheduled for construction in 2010, and the total project cost is currently estimated to be $5.1M.   This project has been approved for Highway Bridge Rehabilitation and Replacement (HBRR) funding provided by the United States Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), as administered by the State of California, Department of Transportation (Caltrans).  The HBRR grant funding covers up to 88.53% of all eligible costs and the balance is made up of matching City funds.  The bridge needs to be replaced due to its deteriorating condition and limited flood control capacity.  

In addition to the City’s bridge replacement project, preliminary steps for the design and environmental review of the proposed Army Corps Lower Mission Creek project, downstream of Canon Perdido Street to its outlet near Stearns Wharf, are also ongoing in order to improve the storm capacity of lower Mission Creek.

Certain properties and rights of way will eventually need to be acquired by the City to make way for any future projects to replace the bridge at Ortega Street and improve Mission Creek.  Based on available project data, the acquisitions include the purchase of the real property at 303 West Ortega Street, by the City.  This property must be acquired and the residence demolished due to the placement of portions of its foundation within Mission Creek, and the proximity of the structure to the existing bridge.

The foundation of the residence at 303 West Ortega Street has been damaged by ongoing storm water flow in Mission Creek and has required periodic and costly rehabilitation by Ms. Ehrenclou to ensure safe habitation of the residence.  Considering the future bridge project undergoing review by the City, and the possible future Lower Mission Creek project, Ms. Ehrenclou has requested that the City purchase the real property in advance of the projects in order to minimize ongoing repair costs.
Ms. Ehrenclou’s request has been approved by the FHWA and Caltrans as a hardship purchase in advance of the future bridge replacement project.  As authorized by the FHWA and Caltrans, the property was appraised by Stephen G. Schott, MAI, to determine its current fair market value, and in accordance with applicable laws, a written offer and pertinent items were delivered to Ms. Ehrenclou for consideration.  The City’s purchase offer has been accepted and the Agreement of Sale recommended herein was signed by Ms. Ehrenclou to allow follow up review and approval by Council to purchase the property.
The Resolution recommended for adoption by Council will enable the Public Works Director, on behalf of City Council, to execute all documents necessary to accomplish the City’s purchase of the property at 303 West Ortega Street without delay.

BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION:
The funds for the full purchase price of the property at 303 West Ortega Street, and associated sale costs, have already been appropriated into the Ortega Bridge project account.  The City has written approval from Caltrans (Attachment 2) for the purchase in the amount of $565,000 with a guarantee for the remaining funds via a letter from Caltrans (Attachment 3).  As provided in the Agreement of Sale, based on the appraised fair market value in the amount of $620,000, and based on the estimated costs to be paid relative to the escrow in the approximate amount of $15,000, the total sum to be deposited with Land America Lawyers Title Company is $635,000.
The entire estimated $635,000 cost is eligible for HBRR reimbursement.  The HBRR grant will cover 88.53% or approximately $562,164 and the City’s match is 11.47% or approximately $72,836.  There are sufficient funds in the Streets Fund to cover the associated expenses related to this purchase. 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACTS:

Acquisition of this property, and the proposed removal of the building foundation wall as part of the upcoming Ortega Street Bridge Replacement Project, will allow creek bank restoration at this location, and contribute to the Mission Creek improvements in accordance with the approved Lower Mission Creek environmental documents.
ATTACHMENT(S):
1.
Site Exhibit
2. Caltrans Right of Way Funding Letter – December 13, 2006
3. Caltrans Right of Way Funding Letter – February 28, 2007
PREPARED BY:
John Ewasiuk, Principal Civil Engineer/DI/kts
SUBMITTED BY:
Anthony J. Nisich, Public Works Director

APPROVED BY:
City Administrator’s Office
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